
From: Felts, Richard E <Richard.Felts@energyTransfer.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, August 6, 2024 6:26 AM 
To: Jasmine Yuan 
Subject: FW: Technical Review - O3090 ET Gathering & Processing LLC (Renewal, 

36234) 
Attachments: Flores_OP-PBRSUB.pdf; Flores_OP-REQ1_pg80_10009.pdf; 

Flores_OPREQ2.pdf; FLores_Signed_Permit-Renewal_20240805.pdf 
 
Follow Up Flag: Follow up 
Flag Status: Flagged 

 
Please see the attached forms for the Flores.  
 

 

   

Richard Felts 

Sr. Environmental Specilaist 

Environmental 

Energy Transfer 

Richard.Felts@energytransfer.com 

 

C: 806-207-1353 

 

 
 

From: Zachary Crowell <Zachary.Crowell@altamira-us.com>  
Sent: Friday, August 2, 2024 1:43 PM 
To: Felts, Richard E <Richard.Felts@energyTransfer.com> 
Cc: Camren McMillan <Camren.McMillan@altamira-us.com> 
Subject: RE: Technical Review - O3090 ET Gathering & Processing LLC (Renewal, 36234) 

 
Richard, 
 
Attached are the updated forms. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Zachary Crowell 
Program Manager  
O 405.702.1598 | C 405.206.0440  
 

From: Felts, Richard E <Richard.Felts@energyTransfer.com>  
Sent: Thursday, August 1, 2024 2:36 PM 
To: Zachary Crowell <Zachary.Crowell@altamira-us.com> 
Subject: Fwd: Technical Review - O3090 ET Gathering & Processing LLC (Renewal, 36234) 

 
 
Please see email below 
Get Outlook for iOS 

mailto:Richard.Felts@energyTransfer.com
mailto:Zachary.Crowell@altamira-us.com




TCEQ-10017 (APD-ID156v2.0, Revised 07/22) Form OP-REQ2 - Negative Applicable/Superseded Requirement Determinations 

This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  

may be revised periodically (Title V Release 10/07) Page ______ of ______

Form OP-REQ2 

Negative Applicable/Superseded Requirement Determinations 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Date Permit No. Regulated Entity No. 

8/6/2024 O-3090 RN100214311 

Unit AI Revision No. 
Unit/Group/Process 

ID No. 
Unit/Group/Process 

Applicable Form 
Potentially Applicable 

Regulatory Name 

Negative 

Applicability/Superseded

Requirement Citation 
Negative Applicability/Superseded 

Requirement Reason 

T-1 OP-UA03 40 CFR Part 60 NSPS OOOO 40 CFR 60.5365(e) The storage tank has potential VOC 

emissions under 6 TPY  



08/05/2024

O-3090

RN100214311
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From: Felts, Richard E <Richard.Felts@energyTransfer.com> 
Sent: Thursday, May 2, 2024 1:07 PM 
To: Jasmine Yuan 
Subject: RE: Technical Review - O3090 ET Gathering & Processing LLC (Renewal, 

36234) 
Attachments: Flores OP_CRO-1 Signed Form.pdf 

Good Afternoon Ms. Yuan 

The pernit draft looks correct. 

I made on change in the process description. The nautral gas enters he suction at eh station and goes 
one compressor.  

Please see the signed attached OP-CRO-1 form. 

Richard Felts 

Sr. Environmental Specilaist 

Environmental 

Energy Transfer 

Richard.Felts@energytransfer.com 

C: 806-207-1353 

From: Jasmine Yuan <Jasmine.Yuan@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, April 25, 2024 11:06 AM 
To: Felts, Richard E <Richard.Felts@energyTransfer.com> 
Subject: RE: Technical Review - O3090 ET Gathering & Processing LLC (Renewal, 36234) 

Hello 
Please proofread the attached SOP draft and confirm by 05/03/2024. 
Secondly, please edit or confirm the process description for the site, which will be used in the technical 
review document.  

PROCESS DESCRIPTION 

The Flores Compressor Station operates as a booster station for the Sherman County Gas Gathering 
System. Natural gas enters the compressor station suction, is split between one compressor units and is 
discharged back into the Sherman County Gas Gathering System.  These compressor engines emit 
nitrogen oxides (NOx), carbon monoxide (CO), volatile organic compounds (VOC), sulfur dioxide (SO2) 
and particulate matter (PM10).   In addition to the emissions from the compressor engines, the Flores 
Compressor Station also has VOC emissions from the process equipment components (valves, flanges, 
compressor seals, etc.). 





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
 
 
Last, when you approve everything, please provide op-cro1 to certify the information. 
Thank you! 
Jasmine  
 
 

From: Felts, Richard E <Richard.Felts@energyTransfer.com>  
Sent: Friday, April 19, 2024 6:05 AM 
To: Jasmine Yuan <Jasmine.Yuan@tceq.texas.gov> 
Subject: RE: Technical Review - O3090 ET Gathering & Processing LLC (Renewal, 36234) 
 
Good Morning, 
 
Please see the attached forms that you requested for the Flores permit renewal. 
 
Please let me know if you have anything else.  
 
Thanks 
 

 

   

Richard Felts 

Sr. Environmental Specilaist 

Environmental 

Energy Transfer 

Richard.Felts@energytransfer.com 

 

C: 806-207-1353 

 

 
 

From: Jasmine Yuan <Jasmine.Yuan@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Tuesday, April 16, 2024 3:26 PM 
To: Zachary Crowell <Zachary.Crowell@altamira-us.com> 
Cc: Felts, Richard E <Richard.Felts@energyTransfer.com> 
Subject: RE: Technical Review - O3090 ET Gathering & Processing LLC (Renewal, 36234) 

mailto:Richard.Felts@energyTransfer.com
mailto:Jasmine.Yuan@tceq.texas.gov
mailto:Richard.Felts@energytransfer.com
mailto:Jasmine.Yuan@tceq.texas.gov
mailto:Zachary.Crowell@altamira-us.com
mailto:Richard.Felts@energyTransfer.com


 
Hello  
Just want to check your status and see if you need help with the forms. 
The PBR 98565 is still valid and you included it in the OP-PBRSUP. So it should be reflected in the OP-
SUMR PCA information column. 
Let me know if you have any questions. 
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From: Jasmine Yuan  

Sent: Monday, April 8, 2024 2:41 PM 

To: Zachary Crowell <Zachary.Crowell@altamira-us.com> 

Cc: Felts, Richard E <Richard.Felts@energyTransfer.com> 

Subject: RE: Technical Review - O3090 ET Gathering & Processing LLC (Renewal, 36234) 

 

Is the PBR98565 incorporated by consolidaBon or reference in NSR? I think the PBR is sBll valid, which means it is just 

refenced by NSR. 

So your OP-PBRSUP is correct to have 98565. But this PBR98565 is not included in your permit yet.  

To update the permit to have PBR98565 you need to submit OP-SUMR for the following blue highlighted units. Currently 

they only have 106.352, but no registered PBR. 
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Federal Operating Permit Program 
Site Information Summary 

Form OP-1 (Page 1) 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Please print or type all information. Direct any questions regarding this application form to the Air Permits Division at 
(512) 239-1250 or to the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, Office of Air, Air Permits Division (MC 163), 
P.O. Box 13087, Austin, Texas 78711-3087. 

I. Company Identifying Information 

A. Company Name: 

B. Customer Reference Number (CN): CN 

C. Submittal Date (mm/dd/yyyy): 

II. Site Information 

A. Site Name: 

B. Regulated Entity Reference Number (RN): RN 

C. Indicate affected state(s) required to review permit application: (Check the appropriate box[es].) 

AR CO KS LA NM OK N/A 

D. Indicate all pollutants for which the site is a major source based on the site’s potential to emit: 
(Check the appropriate box[es].) 

VOC NOX SO2 PM10 CO Pb HAPS 

Other: 

E. Is the site a non-major source subject to the Federal Operating Permit Program? YES NO 

F. Is the site within a local program area jurisdiction? YES NO 

G. Will emissions averaging be used to comply with any Subpart of 40 CFR Part 63? YES NO 

H. Indicate the 40 CFR Part 63 Subpart(s) that will use emissions averaging: 

III. Permit Type 

A. Type of Permit Requested: (Select only one response ) 

Site Operating Permit (SOP) Temporary Operating Permit (TOP) General Operating Permit (GOP) 

TCEQ 10002 (APD ID 251v1, revised 09/23) OP-1 
This form is for use by sources subject to air quality permit requirements 
and may be revised periodically. Page _____ of _____ 

ET Gathering & Processing LLC

606187110

01/12/2024

Flores Compressor Station

100214311



Federal Operating Permit Program 
Site Information Summary 

Form OP-1 (Page 2) 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

IV. Initial Application Information (Complete for Initial Issuance Applications Only.) 

A. Is this submittal an abbreviated or a full application? Abbreviated Full 

B. If this is a full application, is the submittal a follow-up to an abbreviated application? YES NO 

C. If this is an abbreviated application, is this an early submittal for a combined 
SOP and Acid Rain permit? YES NO 

D. Has an electronic copy of this application been submitted (or is being submitted) to EPA? 
(Refer to the form instructions for additional information.) YES NO 

E. Has the required Public Involvement Plan been included with this application? YES NO 

V. Confidential Information 

A. Is confidential information submitted in conjunction with this application? YES NO 

VI. Responsible Official (RO) Identifying Information 

RO Name Prefix: ( Mr. Mrs. Ms. Dr.) 

RO Full Name: 

RO Title: 

Employer Name: 

Mailing Address: 

City: 

State: 

ZIP Code: 

Territory: 

Country: 

Foreign Postal Code: 

Internal Mail Code: 

Telephone No.: 

Fax No.: 

Email: 

TCEQ 10002 (APD ID 251v1, revised 09/23) OP-1 
This form is for use by sources subject to air quality permit requirements 
and may be revised periodically. Page _____ of _____ 

David Minielly

VP - Operations

Energy Transfer

8801 S Yale Ave

Tulsa

OK

74137

United States

(918) 794-4570

David.Minielly@energytransfer.com



Federal Operating Permit Program 
Site Information Summary 

Form OP-1 (Page 3) 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

VII. Technical Contact Identifying Information (Complete if different from RO.) 

Technical Contact Name Prefix: ( Mr. Mrs. Ms. Dr.) 

Technical Contact Full Name: 

Technical Contact Title: 

Employer Name: 

Mailing Address: 

City: 

State: 

ZIP Code: 

Territory: 

Country: 

Foreign Postal Code: 

Internal Mail Code: 

Telephone No.: 

Fax No.: 

Email: 

VIII. Reference Only Requirements (For reference only.) 

A. State Senator: 

B. State Representative: 

C. Has the applicant paid emissions fees for the most recent agency fiscal year 
(Sept. 1 - August 31)? YES NO N/A 

D. Is the site subject to bilingual notice requirements pursuant to 30 TAC § 122.322? YES NO 

E. Indicate the alternate language(s) in which public notice is required: 

TCEQ 10002 (APD ID 251v1, revised 09/23) OP-1 
This form is for use by sources subject to air quality permit requirements 
and may be revised periodically. Page _____ of _____ 

Richard Felts

Sr. Environmental Specialist

Energy Transfer

P.O. Box 520

Sunray

TX

79086

United States

(806) 207-1353

richard.felts@energytransfer.com

Kevin Sparks

Four Price



Federal Operating Permit Program 
Site Information Summary 

Form OP-1 (Page 4) 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

IX. Off-Site Permit Request 
(Optional for applicants requesting to hold the FOP and records at an off-site location.) 

A. Office/Facility Name: 

B. Physical Address: 

City: 

State: 

ZIP Code: 

Territory: 

Country: 

Foreign Postal Code: 

C. Physical Location: 

D. Contact Name Prefix: ( Mr. Mrs. Ms. Dr.) 

Contact Full Name: 

E. Telephone No.: 

X. Application Area Information 

A. Area Name: 

B. Physical Address: 

City: 

State: 

ZIP Code: 

C. Physical Location: 

D. Nearest City: 

E. State: 

F. ZIP Code: 

TCEQ 10002 (APD ID 251v1, revised 09/23) OP-1 
This form is for use by sources subject to air quality permit requirements 
and may be revised periodically. Page _____ of _____ 

Sunray Field Office

11571 Texas Beef Road

Sunray

Texas
79086

Environmental Specialist Office

Richard Felts

(806) 207-1353

Flores Compressor Station

3MI W OF SUNRAY ON HWY 281; 1.5MI N. ON GRAVEL RD

Sunray

TX
79086



Federal Operating Permit Program 
Site Information Summary 

Form OP-1 (Page 5) 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

X. Application Area Information (continued)

G. Latitude (nearest second): 

H. Longitude (nearest second): 

I. Are there any emission units that were not in compliance with the applicable 
requirements identified in the application at the time of application submittal? YES NO 

J. Indicate the estimated number of emission units in the application area: 

K. Are there any emission units in the application area subject to the Acid Rain Program? YES NO 

XI. Public Notice 
(Complete this section for SOP Applications and Acid Rain Permit Applications only.) 

A. Name of a public place to view application and draft permit: 

B. Physical Address: 

City: 

ZIP Code: 

C. Contact Person (Someone who will answer questions from the public during the public notice period): 

Contact Name Prefix: ( Mr. Mrs. Ms. Dr.): 

Contact Person Full Name: 

Contact Mailing Address: 

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

36.0436

-101.8875

20

Moore County Courthouse

715 S. Dumas Ave., Room 105

Dumas

79029

Richard Felts

P.O. Box 520

Sunray

TX
79086

United States

(806) 207-1353



Federal Operating Permit Program 
Site Information Summary 

Form OP-1 (Page 6) 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

XII. Delinquent Fees and Penalties 

Notice:  This form will not be processed until all delinquent fees and/or penalties owed to the TCEQ or the Office of 
Attorney General on behalf of the TCEQ are paid in accordance with the “Delinquent Fee and Penalty Protocol.” 

Complete Sections XIII and XIV for Acid Rain Permit and CSAPR applications only. Please include a copy of the 
Certificate of Representation submitted to EPA. 

XIII. Designated Representative (DR) Identifying Information 

DR Name Prefix: ( Mr. Mrs. Ms. Dr.) 

DR Full Name: 

DR Title: 

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

Form OP-1 (Page 7) 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Complete Sections XIII and XIV for Acid Rain Permit and CSAPR applications only. Please include a copy of the 
Certificate of Representation submitted to EPA. 

XIV. Alternate Designated Representative (ADR) Identifying Information 

ADR Name Prefix: ( Mr. Mrs. Ms. Dr.) 

ADR Full Name: 

ADR Title:  

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
 
Is the PBR98565 incorporated by consolidation or reference in NSR? I think the PBR is still valid, which 
means it is just refenced by NSR. 
So your OP-PBRSUP is correct to have 98565. But this PBR98565 is not included in your permit yet.  
To update the permit to have PBR98565 you need to submit OP-SUMR for the following blue highlighted 
units. Currently they only have 106.352, but no registered PBR. 
Please note these units do not have applicability nor permit shields. But they are still documented in 
system. So we have to maintain the right information.  
 

 
 
See your OP-PBRSUP has these units authorized by PBR98565. These forms need to be consistent.  
 
 
 

mailto:Zachary.Crowell@altamira-us.com
mailto:Richard.Felts@energyTransfer.com


 
 
You need to fill the OP-SUMR with registered PBR in the circle. Format needs to be like 
this  106.352/02/27/2011[98565] 
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Let me know if you have any quesBons. 

Jasmine  

From: Zachary Crowell <Zachary.Crowell@altamira-us.com>  

Sent: Monday, April 8, 2024 1:34 PM 

To: Jasmine Yuan <Jasmine.Yuan@tceq.texas.gov> 

Cc: Felts, Richard E <Richard.Felts@energyTransfer.com> 

Subject: RE: Technical Review - O3090 ET Gathering & Processing LLC (Renewal, 36234) 

 

Jasmine, 

 

Our records show that the PBRs are already incorporated into the SOP, so we are unsure what you are wanting 

updated in the OP-SUMR.  

 

Can you please provide a bit more direction as to what you are needing? 

 

Thanks, 

 

Zachary Crowell 

Program Manager  

O 405.702.1598 | C 405.206.0440  

 

From: Felts, Richard E <Richard.Felts@energyTransfer.com>  

Sent: Thursday, March 21, 2024 6:37 AM 

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
 
Good Morning Zach, 
 
The permit will be in the Sunray Field office in the Environmental Specialist office. Phone Number 806-
207-1353 
 

 

   

Richard Felts 

Sr. Environmental Specilaist 

Environmental 

Energy Transfer 

Richard.Felts@energytransfer.com 

 

C: 806-207-1353 

 

 
 

From: Zachary Crowell <Zachary.Crowell@altamira-us.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, March 20, 2024 11:40 PM 
To: Felts, Richard E <Richard.Felts@energyTransfer.com> 
Subject: RE: Technical Review - O3090 ET Gathering & Processing LLC (Renewal, 36234) 
 
Richard, 
 
I need the physical location within the office the permit/records will be kept and the contact name 
and number for the office in order to complete the OP-1. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Zachary Crowell 
Program Manager  
O 405.702.1598 | C 405.206.0440  
 

From: Felts, Richard E <Richard.Felts@energyTransfer.com>  
Sent: Monday, March 18, 2024 8:46 AM 
To: Zachary Crowell <Zachary.Crowell@altamira-us.com> 
Subject: FW: Technical Review - O3090 ET Gathering & Processing LLC (Renewal, 36234) 
 
Good Morning Zach, 
 
We probably need to change the location of the permit. The permit is located at the Sunray Field Office, 
11571 Texas Beef Road, Sunray, Texas 79086. 

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


 
Please review the attached draft.  I didn’t see an issues with the draft.  
 

 

   

Richard Felts 

Sr. Environmental Specilaist 

Environmental 

Energy Transfer 

Richard.Felts@energytransfer.com 

 

C: 806-207-1353 

 

 
 

From: Jasmine Yuan <Jasmine.Yuan@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, March 14, 2024 1:06 PM 
To: Felts, Richard E <Richard.Felts@energyTransfer.com> 
Subject: Technical Review - O3090 ET Gathering & Processing LLC (Renewal, 36234) 
 

Hello Richard,  
I have been assigned to the Federal Operating Permit (FOP) renewal application of 
Permit No. O3090 for ET Gathering & Processing LLC, Flores Compressor Station. This 

application has been assigned Project No. 36234. Please address all correspondence 
pertaining to this permit application, including any updates, to me at the address below, 
and use both the Permit and Project reference numbers above to facilitate tracking. 
  
Upon review, I have the following questions: 

1. Do you still need the off-site permit, which is on OP-1, page 4, IX section. You 
current permit has off-site permit location term No. 10 “The permit holder shall 
maintain a copy of this permit and records related to requirements listed in this 
permit at the Energy Transfer Amarillo Office located at 6900 I 40 W., Suite 260, 
Amarillo, Texas 79106.”. However, you did not indicate this in the OP-1. Please 
update the OP-1 if you still need the off-site permit location.  

2. Please submit OP-SUM to have the registered PBR indicated in the OP-
PBRSUP in the PCA information. 

3. Please review the permit draft in attached and provide comments within 15 days.  

 

In addition, I wanted to let you know that EPA has, on occasion, objected to Title V 
permits based on the following:  

a.    NSR permit and PBR monitoring sufficiency –please refer to our 
periodic monitoring guidance for reference of monitoring that EPA 
has, so far, considered sufficient. 

b.    Reference to confidential business information (CBI) in NSR 
permits and PBR submittals. 

c.    High level terms in the SOP Applicable Requirement Summary 
Table. The high level terms are sometimes used in SOPs when 

mailto:Richard.Felts@energytransfer.com
mailto:Jasmine.Yuan@tceq.texas.gov
mailto:Richard.Felts@energyTransfer.com


unit attribute forms have not yet been updated due to regulatory 
amendments. 

d.    Accuracy of PBR information provided on the supplemental table 
and in the permit – please refer to Forms OP-PBRSUP and OP-
REQ1 Instructions. 

If you have any questions or concerns on any of these items or think you need to do any 
additional updates, let me know and we can discuss further. 
  

Application updates may now be submitted through Title V STEERS. Any application 
updates that are submitted by the RO/DAR through STEERS are certified and do not 
require the submittal of an original signature OP-CRO1. Application updates that are 
provided through email or physical mail require certification using an original 
signature OP-CRO1. 
  
Please notify me when these updates have been submitted. 
  
As required on Form OP-1, question IV.D, please remember the FOP application and all 
application updates must be submitted to EPA Region 6 at R6AirPermitsTX@epa.gov and 
to the TCEQ regional office having jurisdiction. This submittal information can be found 
on our website at Where to Submit FOP Applications and Permit-Related Documents. 

  
  
Please review the “SOP Technical Review Fact Sheet” located 
at http://www.tceq.texas.gov/assets/public/permitting/air/Guidance/Title_V/sop_wdp_factsheet.pdf. This 
guidance contains important information regarding the review process and application 
update procedures.  Contact me if you have any questions regarding the guidelines, the 
project schedule, or any other details regarding your application or permit. 
  
Thank you for your cooperation. 
  
Sincerely, 
 
 
Jasmine Yuan 
TCEQ Air Permits Division 
P.O. Box 13087, MC 163 
Austin, TX 78753 
Phone: (512)239-6090 
Fax: (512)239-1400 
Jasmine.Yuan@tceq.texas.gov 
 
How are we doing?  Fill out our online customer satisfaction survey 
at www.tceq.texas.gov/customersurvey 
 

Private and confidential as detailed here. If you cannot access hyperlink, please e-mail 
sender.  
Private and confidential as detailed here. If you cannot access hyperlink, please e-mail 
sender.  

mailto:R6AirPermitsTX@epa.gov
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January 17, 2024 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
Air Permits Initial Review Team, MC 161 
12100 Park 35 Circle, Building C, Third Floor 
Austin, Texas 78753 
(512) 239-1250

CERTIFIED MAIL #: 

Re: ET Gathering & Processing LLC 
Flores Compressor Station 
Moore County, Texas  
Renewal Application for Title V Operating Permit No. O-3090 
TCEQ Account MR0044P 
Customer Number: CN606187110 
Regulated Entity Number: RN100214311 

Dear Reader: 

ET Gathering & Processing LLC, owns and operates Flores Compressor Station 
(Facility). The Facility is a natural gas gathering compressor station responsible 
for the compression of gas into a pipeline. The Facility operates under Texas 
Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) Title V Operating Permit Number 
O-3090 (Permit) which was most recently issued on August 7, 2019.  The Permit
requires a renewal application be submitted at least 6 months prior to expiration of
the Permit. To meet this requirement ETC is submitting the attached Title V SOP
Renewal Application forms.

The facility operates as represented in the permit.  

CAM and PM Analysis 
A review of Continuous Air Monitoring (CAM) requirements is required as part of 
the renewal application. No units at the Flores Compressor Station are equipped 
with an emissions control device.  Therefore, CAM does not apply to any source 
at this Facility.  

The TCEQ has added periodic monitoring (PM) to the requirements of the SOP 
through the tabulated index codes, based on the claimed regulatory applicability.  



Forms Included 
The following forms are being submitted: 
 
 OP-1 
 OP-2 
 OP-CRO1 
 OP-ACPS 
 OP-REQ1 
 OP-PBRSUP 
 
If you have any questions regarding the submittal or require additional information, 
please contact me at (806) 207-1353. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Richard Felts 
Senior Environmental Specialist 
 
 



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
and may be revised periodically. Page 1  of   5 



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
and may be revised periodically. Page  3   of   5 



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
and may be revised periodically. Page  4   of   5 



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
and may be revised periodically. Page  5   of   5 







TCEQ -10009 (APDG 5836v6, Revised 08/18) OP-CRO1
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and 
may be  revised periodically. (Title  V Release 08/18) Page 1  of  1

Form OP-CRO1
Certification by Responsible Official
Federal Operating Permit Program

All initial permit application, revision, renewal, and reopening submittals requiring certification must be addressed using 
this form. Updates to site operating permit (SOP) and temporary operating permit (TOP) applications, other than public
notice verification materials, must be certified prior to authorization of public notice or start of public announcement.
Updates to general operating permit (GOP) applications must be certified prior to receiving an authorization to operate 
under a GOP.

I. Identifying Information

RN: CN: Account No.:

Permit No.: Project No.:

Area Name: Company Name:

II. Certification Type (Please mark the appropriate box)

Responsible Official Duly Authorized Representative

III. Submittal Type (Please mark the appropriate box) (Only one response can be accepted per form)

SOP/TOP Initial Permit Application Update to Permit Application

GOP Initial Permit Application Permit Revision, Renewal, or Reopening

Other:

IV. Certification of Truth

This certification does not extend to information which is designated by the TCEQ as information for reference 
only.

I, certify that I am the 
(Certifier Name printed or typed) (RO or DAR)

and that, based on information and belief formed after reasonable inquiry, the statements and information dated during 
the time period or on the specific date(s) below, are true, accurate, and complete:

Note:  Enter Either a Time Period OR Specific Date(s) for each certification. This section must be completed. The 
certification is not valid without documentation date(s).

Time Period:  From to 
Start Date End Date

Specific Dates:
Date 1 Date 2 Date 3 Date 4 Date 5 Date 6

Signature: Signature Date: 

Title:



TCEQ - 10100 (APDG 5876v4, Revised 07/17) OP-ACPS
This form is for use by sources subject to air quality permit requirements
and may be revised periodically. Page 1 of  1 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
Form OP-ACPS

Application Compliance Plan and Schedule

Date: Regulated Entity No.: Permit No.:

Company Name: Area Name:

Part 1 of this form must be submitted with all initial FOP applications and renewal applications.

The Responsible Official must use Form OP-CRO1 (Certification by Responsible Official) to certify 
information contained in this form in accordance with 30 TAC § 122.132(d)(8).

Part 1

A. Compliance Plan — Future Activity Committal Statement

The Responsible Official commits, utilizing reasonable effort, to the following:
As the responsible official it is my intent that all emission units shall continue to be in compliance with all 
applicable requirements they are currently in compliance with, and all emission units shall be in compliance 
by the compliance dates with any applicable requirements that become effective during the permit term.

B. Compliance Certification - Statement for Units in Compliance*
(Indicate response by entering an “X” in the appropriate column)

1. With the exception of those emission units listed in the Compliance Schedule section
of this form (Part 2, below), and based, at minimum, on the compliance method
specified in the associated applicable requirements, are all emission units addressed
in this application in compliance with all their respective applicable requirements as
identified in this application?

YES NO

2. Are there any non-compliance situations addressed in 
Section of this form (Part 2)?

the Compliance Schedule YES NO

3. If the response to Item B.2, above, is “Yes,” indicate the total number of Part 2
attachments included in this submittal. (For reference only)

* For Site Operating Permits (SOPs), the complete application should be consulted for applicable
requirements and their corresponding emission units when assessing compliance status.
For General Operating Permits (GOPs), the application documentation, particularly Form OP-REQ1
should be consulted as well as the requirements contained in the appropriate General Permits portion of
30 TAC Chapter 122.

Compliance should be assessed based, at a minimum, on the required monitoring, testing, record
keeping, and/or reporting requirements, as appropriate, associated with the applicable requirement in
question.
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Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
Application Area-Wide Applicability Determinations and General Information 

Form OP-REQ1 
Federal Operating Permit Program 

TCEQ - 10043 (APDG 5733v46, Revised 11/20) OP-REQ1 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  
may be revised periodically. (Title V IMS Release 11/20) Page 88 of 88 

Date: 

Permit No.: 

RN No.: 

For SOP applications, answer ALL questions unless otherwise directed. 
For GOP applications, answer ONLY these question unless otherwise directed.

Form OP-REQ1:  Page 88 

XII. NSR Authorizations (Attach additional sheets if necessary for sections E-J)

I. Permits by Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for the Application Area

A list of selected Permits by Rule (previously referred to 
FOP application is available in the instructions. 

as standard exemptions) that are required to be listed in the 

PBR No.: Version No./Date: 

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

J. Municipal Solid Waste and Industrial Hazardous Waste Permits With an Air Addendum

Permit No.: Issuance Date: 

Permit No.: Issuance Date: 

Permit No.: Issuance Date: 

Permit No.: Issuance Date: 

01/12/2024

O-3090

RN100214311

106.352(l) 02/27/2011

106.359 09/10/2013

106.511 09/04/2000

SE 6 09/17/1973



Form OP-PBRSUP - Instructions 
Permits By Rule Supplemental Table 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

General: 

The form is used to provide supplemental information for all Permits by Rule (PBRs) that authorize emission units for a 
site (or area) subject to the requirements of the Federal Operating Permit (FOP) Program. For emission units identified on 
Form OP-SUM or Form OP-SUMR, the PBR registration number identified in Section A must also be included on Form 
OP-SUM or Form OP-SUMR. 

The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) regulated entity reference number (RNXXXXXXXXX), if 
assigned, and the application area name from Form OP-1 (Site Information Summary) must appear on the header of each 
page for purposes of identification for the initial submittal. The date of the initial submittal must also be included and 
should be consistent throughout the application (MM/DD/YYYY). The date on each table should be revised with any 
updated submittal provided during the review process. Leave the permit number blank only if the initial form submittal 
accompanies an initial application. If this form is included as part of the permit renewal or revision process, enter the FOP 
permit number assigned by the TCEQ, the area name from Form OP-1, the date of the renewal or revision submittal, and 
the regulated entity reference number. The form OP-PBRSUP should be submitted for any PBR authorization updates 
with each revision and renewal application. 

The TCEQ requires that a Core Data Form be submitted on all incoming applications/registrations unless a regulated 
entity reference number and customer reference number have been issued by the TCEQ and no core data information has 
changed. If a regulated entity reference number or customer reference number has been issued, then the number must be 
noted on the request or applicable form. For more information regarding the Core Data Form, call (512) 239-5175 or go to 
the TCEQ website at: www.tceq.texas.gov/permitting/central_registry/guidance.html 

Specific: 

Permits by Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for the Application Area 

Emission units authorized under the following PBRs and any corresponding historical (pre-March 1997) SEs are 
required to be listed in sections A, B, and D: 

PBR No. Name or Subject PBR No. Name or Subject 

106.124 Pilot Plants 106.373 Refrigeration Systems 

106.142 Rock Crushers 106.374 Lime Slaking 

106.144 Bulk Mineral Handling 106.375 Aqueous Electrolytic 

106.145 Bulk Sand Handling 106.376 Decorative Chrome Plating 

106.146 Soil Stabilization Plants 106.392 Thermoset Resin 

106.147 Asphalt Concrete Plants 106.393 Convey/Storage Plastic/Rubber 

106.150 Asphalt Silos 106.395 Plastic/Rubber Mix (No Solvent) 

106.181 Used Oil Combustion Units 106.396 Plastic Rubber Mix (Solvent) 

106.182 Ceramic Kilns 106.411 Steam or Dry Cleaning Equipment 

106.183 Boilers, Heaters, and Other 
Combustion Units 

106.412 Fuel Dispensing 

106.221 Extrusion Presses 106.416 Uranium Recovery 

TCEQ-20875 ( , revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and 
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page 1 of 8 



OP-PBRSUP Instructions 

PBR No. Name or Subject PBR No. Name or Subject 

106.223 Sawmills 106.417 Ethylene Oxide Sterilizers 

106.224 Aerospace 106.418 Printing Presses 

106.225 Semiconductor 106.419 Photographic Process Equipment 

106.226 Coating Manufacturing 106.433 Surface Coat 

106.227 Soldering, Brazing, Welding 106.434 Powder Coating Facility 

106.231 Wood Products 106.435 Classic or Antique Auto Restoration Facility 

106.245 Ethyl Alcohol Facilities 106.436 Auto Body Refinishing 

106.261 Facility; Emission Limits 106.452 Dry Abrasive Cleaning 

106.262 Facility; Emission/Distance 106.454 Degreasing 

106.263 Repairs and Maintenance 106.472 Organic/Inorganic Liquid Loading and 
Unloading 

106.264 Replacements of Facilities 106.473 Organic Liquid Loading and Unloading 

106.265 Hand-Held/Manually Operated Machines 106.474 Hydrochloric Acid Storage 

106.281 Feed Milling 106.475 Pressure Tank or Vent to Firebox 

106.283 Grain Handling 106.476 Pressure Tank or Vent to Control 

106.311 Crucible or Pot Furnace 106.477 Anhydrous NH3 Storage 

106.314 Shell Core and Mold Machines 106.478 Storage Tank and Change Service 

106.315 Sand or Investment Molds 106.491 Dual Chamber Incinerators 

106.320 Miscellaneous Metallic Treatment 106.492 Flares 

106.321 Metal Melting and Holding Furnace 106.493 Direct Flame Incinerators 

106.322 Furnace to Reclaim Aluminum or Copper 106.494 Pathological Waste Incinerators 

106.332 Chlorine Repackaging 106.495 Heat Cleaning Devices 

106.351 Salt Water Disposal 106.496 Air Curtain Incinerators 

106.352 Oil and Gas Production 106.511 Portable and Emergency Engines and Turbines 

TCEQ-20875 ( , revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and 
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page 2 of 4 



OP-PBRSUP Instructions 

PBR No. Name or Subject PBR No. Name or Subject 

106.353 Temporary Oil and Gas Facilities 106.512 Stationary Engines and Turbines 

106.354 Iron Sponge Gas-Treating Unit 106.513 Natural Gas-Fired Combined Heat and 
Power Units 

106.355 Pipeline Metering, Purging, and 
Maintenance 

106.532 Water/Wastewater Treatment 

106.359 Planned Maintenance, Startup, and 
Shutdown (MSS) at Oil and Gas 
Handling and Production Facilities 

106.533 Water and Soil Remediation 

106.371 Cooling Water Units 106.534 Municipal Solid Waste Landfills and 
Transfer Stations 

A. Registered Permits by Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for the Application Area

This section provides all PBR authorized emission units for the application area that require registration with the
TCEQ.

Unit ID No.:
Enter the identification number (ID No.) for the emission unit authorized by the registered PBR
(maximum 10 characters). If listed on Form OP-SUM (Individual Unit Summary), the ID No. should match.

Registration No.:
Enter the registration number provided by TCEQ upon authorization.

PBR No.:
For PBRs (Standard Exemption) authorized before March 14, 1997, enter the selected PBR (Standard Exemption)
number, in the space provided (XXX). For PBRs authorized on or after March 14, 1997, enter the selected PBR
section number, in the space provided (106.XXX).

Registration Date:
Enter the date (MM/DD/YYY) the authorization was issued to the site. This is the date of the PBR authorization
letter.

B. Claimed (not registered) Permits by Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for the Application Area

This section provides all PBR authorized emission units for the application area that are claimed (and not
registered).

Unit ID No.:
Enter the identification number (ID No.) for the emission unit authorized by the PBR (maximum 10 characters). If
listed on Form OP-SUM (Individual Unit Summary), the ID No. should match.

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

Version No./Date:
For a PBR (Standard Exemption) authorized before March 14, 1997, enter the effective date of the PBR (Standard
Exemption) under which the PBR was authorized. For a PBR authorized on or after March 14, 1997, enter the
effective date of 30 TAC Chapter 106 under which the PBR was authorized. The 30 TAC Chapter 106 effective
date can be found in the section of the PBR (MM/DD/YYYY).

TCEQ-20875 ( , revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and 
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page 3 of 4 



OP-PBRSUP Instructions 

C. Claimed (not registered) Permits by Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for Insignificant Sources for the
Application Area

This section provides all PBR authorizations for the application area that are not identified in the table above and
are considered insignificant sources.

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

D. Monitoring Requirements for registered and claimed  PBRs for the Application Area

This section provides the monitoring and/or recordkeeping requirements sufficient to demonstrate compliance for
the registered and claimed PBRs identified in sections A and B.

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

Monitoring Requirement:
Provide the monitoring and/or recorkeeping requirements used to demonstrate compliance with the applicable
PBR conditions, general requirements of 30 TAC §106.4 or general requirements (if any) in effect at the time of
the claim, and any certified registration of emission limits as applicable for the emission units. The specificity of
the monitoring and/or recordkeeping requirements is required to be consistent with the Periodic Monitoring
Guidance and include the following:

Identify one or more indicators of emission control performance for the control device, or the parameter to
be monitored if a control device is not utilized. Indicators may include, but are not limited to, direct or
predicted emissions (including visible emissions or opacity), control device parameters, process parameters
which are correlated to an emission rate through performance testing or AP-42 emission factors, or recorded
finding of inspection and maintenance activities conducted by the owner or operator.

Identify the frequency of conducting the monitoring. The monitoring frequencies should be consistent with
the minimum monitoring frequency found in the applicable PM guidance document. For example, control
device parameters may be monitored once per week.

If applicable, identify the period over which discrete data points will be averaged.

TCEQ-20875 ( , revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and 
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page 4 of 4 



Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 1) 
Table A: Registered Permits by Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for the Application Area 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Date Permit Number Regulated Entity Number 

Unit ID No. Registration No. PBR No. Registration Date 

TCEQ-20875 (  revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and 
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page 1 of 8 

01/12/2024 O-3090 RN100214311

T-1 98565 106.352 07/01/2014

FUG-2 98565 106.352 07/01/2014

T-ANTI 98565 106.352 07/01/2014

T-FLOW 98565 106.352 07/01/2014

T-LUBE 98565 106.352 07/01/2014

T-USED 98565 106.352 07/01/2014

LOAD-1 98565 106.352 07/01/2014

LOAD-2 98565 106.352 07/01/2014

AEROSOL 98565 106.359 07/01/2014

E-AIR 98565 106.511 07/01/2014



Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 2) 
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
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page 2 of 8 

01/12/2024 O-3090 RN100214311

BD-COMP 98565 106.359 07/01/2014

ENG-OIL 98565 106.359 07/01/2014

ENG4-MSS 98565 106.359 07/01/2014

ENG7-MSS 98565 106.359 07/01/2014

GEN-MSS 98565 106.511 07/01/2014

PAINT 98565 106.359 07/01/2014

PIPING 98565 106.359 07/01/2014

ROD-COMP 98565 106.359 07/01/2014

SAND 98565 106.359 07/01/2014

SEAL-COMP 98565 106.511 07/01/2014



Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 3) 
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
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page 3 of 8 

01/12/2024 O-3090 RN100214311

T-1-MSS 98565 106.359 07/01/2014

WELD 98565 106.359 07/01/2014



Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 4) 
Table B: Claimed (not registered) Permits by Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for the Application Area 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Date Permit Number Regulated Entity Number 

Unit ID No. PBR No. Version No./Date 

TCEQ-20875 ( , revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and 
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page 4 of 8 

01/12/2024 O-3090 RN100214311



Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 5) 
Table C: Claimed (not registered) Permits by Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for Insignificant Sources for the Application Area 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Date Permit Number Regulated Entity Number 

PBR No. Version No./Date 

TCEQ-20875 ( , revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and 
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page 5 of 8 

01/12/2024 O-3090 RN100214311



Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 6) 
Table D: Monitoring Requirements for registered and claimed PBRs for the Application Area 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Date Permit Number Regulated Entity Number 

Unit ID No. PBR No. Version No./Date Or 
Registration No. 

Monitoring Requirement 

TCEQ-20875 ( , revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and 
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page 6 of 8 

01/12/2024 O-3090 RN100214311

T-1 106.352 98565 Monthly tracking of tank throughputs

FUG-2 106.352 98565 Monthly tracking of events

T-ANTI 106.352 98565 Monthly tracking of tank throughputs

T-FLOW 106.352 98565 Monthly tracking of tank throughputs

T-LUBE 106.352 98565 Monthly tracking of tank throughputs

T-USED 106.352 98565 Monthly tracking of tank throughputs

LOAD-1 106.352 98565 Monthly tracking of truck loading

LOAD-2 106.352 98565 Monthly tracking of truck loading

AEROSOL 106.359 98565 Monthly tracking of events

E-AIR 106.511 98565 Monthly tracking of runtime



Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 7) 
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
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page 7 of 8 

01/12/2024 O-3090 RN100214311

BD-COMP 106.359 98565 Monthly tracking of events

ENG-OIL 106.359 98565 Monthly tracking of events

ENG4-MSS 106.359 98565 Monthly tracking of events

ENG7-MSS 106.359 98565 Monthly tracking of events

GEN-MSS 106.511 98565 Monthly tracking of runtime

PAINT 106.359 98565 Monthly tracking of events

PIPING 106.359 98565 Monthly tracking of events

ROAD-COMP 106.359 98565 Monthly tracking of events

SAND 106.359 98565 Monthly tracking of events

SEAL-COMP 106.511 98565 Monthly tracking of runtime



Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 8) 
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
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page 8 of 8 

01/12/2024 O-3090 RN100214311

T-1-MSS 106.359 98565 Monthly tracking of events

WELD 106.359 98565 Monthly tracking of events




